CVC Limited

Commentary on Results

Commentary:

The directors of CVC report a net profit after tax of $20.1 million (2009: loss $66.6 million) for the year ended
June 30, 2010. The last 12 months has seen a great deal of effort expended by management on the restoration
of value of a number of investments since the depths of the Global Financial Crisis in March 2009. The
outcome has seen the current year results include a number of one off recoveries to the value of investments.

During the year the Company returned to paying dividends with the payment of a fully franked 2 cent per share
dividend on March 19, 2010 and the declaration of a fully franked final dividend of 3 cents per share payable
on September 8, 2010. Franking credits retained by the Company approximate 9 cents per share as at June 30,
2010,

As at the end of the financial year the net tangible assets of CVC have increased by 12% to $1.24. This
compares to the increase in the ASX Small Ordinaries over the same period of 8%. At the time of writing the
net assets of CVC has increased to $1.31, excluding the impact of the 3 cents declared dividend, which
represents a further increase of 6% compared to the increase in the ASX Small Ordinaries over the same period
of time of 5%.

As at balance date CVC had in excess of $40.8 million {equivalent to 30.8 cents per share) of cash available for
deployment in value accretive investments.

Financial Highlights:
The result is summarised as follows:

Net profit before tax of $24.7 million (2009: loss $61.6 million);

Net profit after tax of $20.1 million (2009: loss $66.6 million);

Earnings per share of 14.67 cents (2009: loss 44.52 cents);

Net tangible assets per share increased by 12% during the period to $1.24;

Dividend paid of 2 cents per share on March 19, 2010 and the declaration of a final fully franked
dividend of 3 cents per share payable on September 8, 2010; and

+ 10,488,003 shares bought back at a cost of $6.9 million at an average price per share of $0.66 (2009:
$0.73). '

Listed Investmenis

CVC sold 24.7 million shares in Sunland Group Limited generating a profit of $9.7 million and continued to
realise portfolio investments. The contribution of listed investmenis to the operating profit includes the
restoration of value of ASX listed investments and core CVC investees including Cellnet Limited and Pro-pac
Packaging Limited representing an impairment recovery of $6.2 million.

Private Equity

The core private equity investments held by CVC include Ron Finemore Transport Pty Limited and GPG (No.
7) Pty Limited. Both companies have shown continued improvement during the year,

Property

During the year CVC took advantage of a depressed market for commercial and industrial property and
acquired two properties, one industrial in Victoria and one commercial in New South Wales, for a combined
acquisition price of $54 million, secured by long term tenants on atiractive yields with development upside.

CVC realised in excess of $11 million in cash from its Geelong and Shepparton property investments and
advanced $10 million of mezzanine funding at attractive rates to residential property backed projects during the
period.

CVC is benetiting from the tight institutional credit markets and continues to identify compelling investment
opportunities, taking advantage of lower property values and providing loan facilities on improved yields.
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CVC Limited

Funds Management

Funds under Management of Concise Asset Management, a fund manager focused on mid-cap Australian listed
companies, increased to approximately $350 million.

The remaining CVC investment vehicles are in the process of being restructured. The objective is to reduce the
number of satellite investment vehicles of the group, with CVC Private Equity becoming a controlled company
and in the coming year CVC Sustainable Investments and CVC REEF will also undergo a restructure.

Dividends:

As previously mentioned the directors commenced paying dividends to shareholders with the payment of a
fully franked 2 cent per share dividend on March 19, 2010 and the declaration of a fully franked final dividend
of 3 cents per share payable on September 8, 2010.

Outlook:

CVC will continue to focus on its main objective of delivering shareholder returns in excess of 15% per annum
over time. Although CVC is in a position to capitalise on tight credit markets the next 12 months is expected to
be challenging as there are a number of Australian and international issues still to be resolved that will have a

large bearing on the direction of financial markets, At this stage it is not possible to forecast a likely result for
2011.

ADH Beard
Director
31 August 2010
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Appendix 4E

Preliminary Final Report
Results for announcement to the market

CVC Limited
ABN Financial Year ended Previous Financial Year ended
(‘Reporting Period™) (‘Corresponding period’)
[ 34002700361 | | 30 June 2010 | | 30 June 2009 |
Results
Income up/dewn 45% to $ 42,595,297
Profit after tax up/dewn na to $20,114,302
Net profit for the period up/dewn n‘a to $20,114,302

Dividends (distributions)

Amount per security | Franked amount per
security
Final Dividend — 2010 3¢ 3¢
Interim Dividend — 2010 2¢ 2¢

Information on Dividends:

On the 23 August 2010 the Directors announced a final fully franked dividend in respect of the year ended
30 June 2010 of 3 cents per share payable on 8 September 2010,

A fully franked interim dividend in respect of the current financial year of 2 cents per share was paid on 19
March 2010.

As previously advised the Dividend Reinvestment Plan has been suspended until such time as there is a
better correlation between the share price and the underlying net asset value of CVC Limited. As a result the
Dividend Reinvestment Plan will not be in operation.

Ex-dividend date 26 August 2010

Record date for determining entitlements to the final dividend 1 September 2010

Payment Date

8 September 2010

Net tangible asset per security

Year ended Year ended
30 June 2010 30 June 2009
Net assets per share $1.24 f1.11
Net tangible assets (“NTA™) per share $1.24 $1.11

The preliminary final report is based on accounts that have been audited.

Commentary

Brief explanation of any of the figures reported above:

Please refer to the attached commentary for a detailed review.
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CVCLIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Your Directors present the Financial Report of CVC Limited (the “Company”) and its controlled entities (“CVC"), for the year ended
30 June 2010 together with the Auditors’ Report thereon.

DIRECTORS

‘The names of Directors in office throughout the financial year and to the date of this report are Vanda Russell Gould (Chairman),
John Scott Leaver, John Douglas Read and Alexander Damien Harry Beard. The names of Company Secretaries in office throughout
the financial year and to the date of this report are Mr Alexander Damien Harry Beard and Mr John Andrew Hunter. Details of
qualifications, experience and special responsibilities of Directors are as follows:

Vanda Russell Gould (Chairman}

B.Com (Uni. of NSW), M.Com (Uni. of NSW)

Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia; Fellow of the CPA Australia; Fellow of the Australian Institute of
Management; Australian Financial Services Licence holder.

Board member from 1984 — 1994 and from 1996 to date. Member of the audit committee.

Prior to his involvement in the founding of the Company, Mr Gould was a partner of an accounting firm. He has held numerous

directorships of other private and public companies including educational establishments.

During the past three years Mr Gould has also served as a Director of Cyclopharm Limited, Vita Life Sciences Limited and CVC

Property Managers Limited as Responsible Entity for CVC Property Fund.

John Scott Leaver (Non-Executive Director)

B.Ec. (Uni. of Sydney)}

Australian Financial Services Licence holder.

Board member since 1984 and Managing Director of the Company until 2001,

Prior to his involvement in the founding of the Company, Mr Leaver had extensive experience in the stockbroking industry. During
the past three years Mr Leaver has also served as a Director of Sunland Group Limited.

John Douglas Read (Non-Executive Director)

B.Sc. (Hons) (Cant.), MB.A. (A.GS.M.)

Fellow of the Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Board member since 1989 and Chairman of the audit committee of the Company.

Mr Read has over 25 years experience in the venture capital industry. He is a former Director of CSIRO and the Australian
Institute for Commercialisation Limited.

During the past three years Mr Read has also served as a Chairman and Director of the {ollowing other listed companies; The
Environmental Group Limited, Pro-Pac Packaging Limited and Patrys Limited.

Alexander Damien Harry Beard (Director and Company Secretary)

B. Com. (Uni. of NSW)

Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia; Member of Australian Institute of Company Directors.

Board member since 2000 and Chief Executive Officer since 2001. Member of the audit comumittee.

Mr Beard has been employed by the manager of the Company since 1991.

During the past three years Mr Beard has also served as Chairman of Cellnet Group Limited and Director of the following
other listed companies: Mnet Group Limited (formerly Mercury Mobility Limited), Blue Energy Limited, Amadeus Energy
Limited and CVC Property Managers Limited as Responsible Entity for CVC Property Fund.

COMPANY SECRETARIES

John Andrew Hunter
B.Com. (ANU), M.B.A. (MGSM)
Member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia,

In addition to being a Director of the Company, Alexander Damien Harry Beard is also a Company Secretary of the Company.



CVCLIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS” MEETINGS

The numbser of Directors' meetings and number of meetings attended by each of the Directors of the Company during the financial
year were;

Directors’ Meetings

No of meetings No of meetings
attended eligible to attend
Vanda Russell Gould 4 4
John Scott Leaver 4 4
John Douglas Read 4 4
Alexander Damien Harry Beard 4 4

The Company has an audit commiitee. The number of meetings and the number of meetings attended i)y each of the Directors on
the audit commitiee during the financial year were:

Audit Committee Meetings
No of meetings No of meetings
attended eligible to attend
John Douglas Read 2 2
Alexander Damien Harry Beard 2 2
Vanda Russell Gould 1 2

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS

The relevant interest of each Director in the share capital of the Comparny as at the date of this report is as follows:

Ordinary Shares
Mr V.R. Gould 21,150,314
Mr ].S. Leaver 22,525,111
Mr J.D. Read '528,956
Mr A.D.H. Beard 1,381,136

At the date of this report, Messrs Gould and Leaver have an indirect interest in 297 shares in Stinoc Limited, a controlled entity of
CVC Limited.

OVERVIEW OF ACTIVITIES

The sections below provide details on the results, dividends, activities, operations, changes in state of affairs and expectations for
the future.

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

The Directors of CVC wish to announce that the financial performance for the 2010 financial year is as follows:

- Profit before tax of $24.7 million (2009: loss $61.6 million);

- Net profit after tax of $19.7 million (2009: loss $67.4 million); and

- Eamnings per share of 15 cents (2009: negative 45 cents); and

- Impairment recoveries of $12.9 million (2009: nil) and impairment charge of $8.9 million (2009: $84.4 million).

The consolidated profit for the year attributable to the members of the Company is caleulated as follows:

2010 2009

$ $

Net profit/(loss) after income tax 19,693,983 (67,366,687)
Non-controlling interests 420,319 741,753

Net profit/(loss) after income tax attributable to members 20,114,302 (66,624,934)



CVC LIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
DIVIDENDS

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 30 June 2010 of 3 cents per share was declared on 23 August 2010 payable on 8
September 2010 to those shareholders registered on 1 September 2010, An interim dividend of 2 cents per share amounting $2,716,612
was paid on 19 March 2010,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of entities within CVC during the year were:
- the provision of investment, development and venture capital;
- property finance and development;

- investment in listed entities; and

- funds management.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
Highlights for the year of the main operating segments are as follows:

CVC has cash holdings of $40.8 million (equivalent to 30.8 cents per share) and is well placed to pursue investment oppertunities as
and when they emerge.

Listed Investments:

During the year CVC sold 24 million shares in Sunland Group Limited for $19.9 million generating a profit of $9.7 million and
continued to realise non-core holdings, The contribution of listed investments to the operating profit was $25.6 million which
included impairment recoveries of $10.6 million and CVC’s share of net operating profits generated by Pro-Pac Packaging Limited
and Cellnet Limited totalling $1.7 million. CVC's primary focus is the active management of the core investment portfolio.

Private Equity:

The core private equity investments held by CVC include Ron Finemore Transport Pty Limited and GPG (No. 7) Pty Limited
(formerly Green's Foods Limited), as well as a number of other smaller investments,

GPG (No. 7) Pty Limited has manufacturing operations of blended foods, cereals and snack foods that are distributed through
supermarkets. The company has continued to improve its operations over the past year and is now profitable.

Ron Finemore Transport Pty Limited continues to achieve strong growth in both revenue and operating profit and is well placed for
continued growth in 2011.

Property:

During the year CVC took advantage of a depressed market for commercial and industrial property and acquired two properties on
31 March 2010. The commercial property of 357-373 Warringah Road Frenchs Forest New South Wales was acquired at a price of
$14.2 million and the industrial property of 1464 Ferntree Gully Road Knoxfield Victoria at a price of $39.85 million. CVC borrowed
$28.05 million from National Australia Bank Limited to fund the acquisition of the properties.

CVC continues to hold a number of mezzanine finance facilities provided to property projects. During the year, CVC successfully
obtained additional security in relation to a loan facility previously impaired, resulting in an impairment recovery of $4 million. CVC
has also advanced $10.0 million of mezzanine funding at attractive rates to residential property developments.

Funds Management:

CVC continues to focus on the development and profitability of the funds management segment which includes the investment in
Concise Asset Management, a fund manager focused on mid-cap Australian listed companies and CVC Sustainable Investments,
CVC Property Fund and CVC Private Equity Limited.
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CVCLIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

STATE OF AFFAIRS
There were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Company that occurred during the year not otherwise disclosed in

this report or the financial statements.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS

As explained in previous reporis, the total level of profit for any period, notwithstanding the recurrent earnings, is largely
determined by the iming of the realisation of investments that result in capital gains. The Company believes the sirong financial
position and continual evaluation of investment opportunities by its management team will enable the identification and
execution of suitable investment opportuniiies during the course of the year,

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION

CVC's operations are not subject o environmental regulations.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO BALANCE DATE

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 30 June 2010 of 3 cents per share was declared on 23 August 2010 payable on 8
September 2010 to those shareholders registered on 1 September 2010.

On 6 August 2010 a controlled entity of the Company, ASX listed CVC Property Fund completed a rights issue of 1.5 units for each
unit held at 1.2 cents. The total accepiances received, excluding CVC, amounted to $330,241.

Other than as set out above, there are no other maiters or circumstances that have arisen since the end of the financial year which
significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the Company, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of
the Company in future financial years.

SHARE OPTIONS

There were no options issued during the year or to the date of this report.

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE OF OFFICERS AND AUDITORS

a) Indemnification

CVC has not, during or since the end of the financial year, indemnified or made any relevant agreement for indemnifying any
person who is or has been an officer or auditor of CVC or a related body corporate against a liability, including costs and
expenses in successfully defending legal proceedings.

b} Insurance Premiums
CVC has not, during the year or since the end of the financial year, paid or agreed to pay a premium for insuring any person who
is or has been an auditor of the Comparny or a related body corporate for the costs or expenses of defending legal proceedings.

The Company has paid insurance premiums in respect of Directors’ and Officers’ liability and legal expense insurance for
Directors and Officers of the Company.

In accordance with s. 300(9) of the Corporations Act 2001 further details have not been disclosed due to confidentiality provisions
contained in the insurance contract.
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CVC LIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

REMUNERATION REPORT
This report outlines the remuneration arrangements in place for Directors and Executives of CVC,

Remuneration philosophy

The performance of CVC depends upon its ability to aitract and retain quality people. CVC is committed to developing a
remuneration philosophy of paying sufficient competitive ‘base’ rewards to attract and retain high calibre management personnel
and providing the opportunity to receive superior remuneration tied directly to the creation of value for shareholders.

Remuneration structure

In accordance with best practice corporate governance, the structure of non-executive Director and executive remuneration is
separate and distinct.

Non-executive Director” remuneration is solely in the form of fees and has been set by shareholders at a maximum aggregate
amount of $550,000, to be allocated amongst the Directors as they see fit. It has been set to balance the need to attract and retain
Directors of the highest calibre at a cost that is acceptable to shareholders.

Key management personnel remuneration consists of: base salary, fees, superannuation contributions, short term performance
bonuses and participation in the CVC Executive Long Term Incentive Plan.

The Company does not have a remuneration committee, The remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer is proposed by the
Chairman and is determined following discussion with the non-executive Directors.

Short term performance bonuses permit CVC to reward individuals for superior personal performance or contribution towards
components-of CVC’s performance for which they have direct responsibility.

The objectives of the CVC Executive Long Term Incentive Plan are to directly align the opportunity to achieve superior

employment rewards with the wealth generated for shareholders whilst providing a mechanism to retain key employees over the

longer term. In general terms, under the plan:

- key employees are invited by the Directors to acquire shares in the Company subject to certain conditions;

- the conditions specify performance hurdles and time periods in which they are required to be achieved;

- all shares issued under the plan to date cover a three year period and require that the total return to shareholders over the
three year period exceeds the rate of growth over the same period for the S&P/ASX Small Ordinaries Accumulation Index;

- shares are issued at market value and the Company provides a loan to the participant to cover the cost of the shares;

- interest is charged on the loan equivalent to dividends paid on the shares;

- the shares are restricted and cannot be dealt with by the participant during the period;

- shares are forfeited and the loans are cancelled if the performance hurdles have not been met or the share price at the end of
the period is below the issue price;

- if shares are not forfeited, at the end of the period the participant is required to repay the loan, the restrictions on the shares
are removed and the shares are taken out of the plan; and

- amaximum of 5 million shares can be issued under the plan.

CVC has not currently issued any shares under the CVC Executive Long Term Incentive Plan.
Individual remuneration disclosures:

The only remuneration paid by the Company during the financial year is Directors’ fees paid to Mr Read. All other remuneration
disclosed relate to the consolidated group.



CVC LIMITED
(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)
DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

REMUNERATION REPORT (CONTINUTED)

Remuneration of key management personnel:
The only key management personnel of the Company are the Directors.

Remuneration of Directors for the year ended 30 June 2010

Short-term employee Pest — employ't
benefits benefits
Base Salary STIBonus  Superannuation Equity Other Total Base %
Fees () Based (b)
ADH Beard 2010 $229,357 $20,000 $20,642 - $3,375 $273,374 93%
(Director) 2009 $220,183 $50,000 $19,816 - $2,506 $292,505 83%
VR Gould (a)
(Chairperson and 2010 $200,000 - - - - $200,000 100%
Non- Executive
Director) 2009 $200,000 - - - - $200,000 100%
JS Leaver (a) 2010 $200,000 - - - - $200,000 100%
(Non-Executive
Director) 2009 $200,000 - - - - $200,000 100%
JD Read 2010 - - $25,000 - - $25,000 100%
(Nen-Executive
Director} 2009 - - $25,000 - - $25,000 100%
JT Riedl 2010 - - . - - . .
(Non-Executive
Director) 2009 $15,291 - $1,376 - - $16,667 100%
2010 ) $629,357 $20,000 $45,642 - $3,376 $698,374
2009 $635,474 $50,000 $46,192 - $2,506 $734,172
Notes:

(a)  CVC paid management fees of $200,000 (2009: $200,000) each to entities associated with Messrs Gould and Leaver that covers the cost of their services.

(b}  Base % reflects the amount of base level remuneration that is not dependent en individual or CVC performance,

(¢} The Short Term Incentive Bonus paid to Mr Beard represents a discretionary bonus as determined by the Directors of CVC, based on his performance
during the year.



CVC LIMITED
(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE AND NON-AUDIT SERVICES

No fees were paid to HLB Mann Judd in respect of non-audit services during the year.

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION TO THE DIRECTORS OF CVC LIMITED

A copy of the Independence Declaration given to the Directors by the lead auditor for the audit undertaken by HLB Mann Judd is
included on page 9.

This Directors’ Report is signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Dated at Sydney 31 August 2010.

VAN GPULD LEXANDER BEARD
Director Director
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CVC LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

ACN 002 700 361
AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

To the Directors of CVC Limited:

As lead auditor for the audit of CVC Limited for the year ended 30 June 2010, | declare that, fo the
best of my knowledge and belief, there have been;

{a) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in
relation to the audit; and

{b) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

This declaration includes CVC Limited and the entities it controlled during the vear.

fWeis

P B Meade
Partner

Sydney
31 August 2010

9
HLB Mann Judd (NSW Partnership) ABN 34 482 821 289

Level 18 207 Kent Street Sydney NSW 2000 Australia | DX 10313 SSE | Telephone +61 {0)2 9020 4000 | Fax +61 {0)2 9020 4190
Frail: mailhoxahlbnsw.com.au | Website: www,hlb.com.au
Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legistation

HLB Mann Judd (NSW Partrership) is a member of International. A warld-wida organisatien of accounting firms and business advisers.



CVCLIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

Notes
2010 2009
5 $

INCOME
Revenue from services 435,235 1,876,822
Rental income 2,959,622 1,399,082
Ouigoings recovered 417,421 256,854
Net gain on sale of equity investments 16,800,233 18,335,724
Interest revenue 4,690,075 10,711,240
Dividend revenue 874,000 3,140,016
Recovery of investment in unrelated entity 2,433,535 -
Recovery of investiments in associated entities 6,289,526 -
Recovery of loans 4,206,776 -
Other income 217,638 746,687
Total income 4 39,324,151 36,466,425
Share of net profits/(losses) of associates accounted for using the
equity method 14 3,271,146 (7,142,200}
EXPENSES
Amoertisation of intangibles - 58,500
Depreciation expense 18,410 25,055
Employee expenses 1,471,179 1,762,672
Finance costs 5 4,095,899 1,806,816
Impairment of intangibles - 9,374,677
Impairment of investments in associated entities 1,229,356 17,821,552
Impairment of listed investments - 33,527,537
Impairment of loans to other corporations 25,226 12,322,769
Impairment of loans to related entities 2,779,583 5,487,220
Impairment of investment properties 4,646,570 1,383,875
Impairment of unlisted investments 195,711 4,444,349
Investment property-related expenses 413,852 245,753
Management and consultancy fees 967,676 1,113,062
Net realised foreign exchange loss 12,434 -
Operating lease rental 400,425 390,055
Other expenses 5 1,626,508 1,162,878
Profit/(loss) before related income tax expense 24,712,468 (61,602,545)
Income tax expense 6 5,018,485 5,764,142
Net profit/loss) 19,693,983 (67,366,687)
Net loss attributable to non-controlling interest 23 (420,319) (741,753)
Net profit/(loss) attributable to members of the parent entity 20,114,302 (66,624,934)
Basic and diluted earnings per share

The above statement of financial performance is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements set out on pages

15 to 53.
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CVC LIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2410

2010 2009
$ 3
Profit/(loss) for the year 19,693,983 (67,366,687)
Other comprehensive income
“Available-for-sale” investments:
- Decrease in fair values recognised in other reserves (1,262,426) (31,912,895)
- Amounts transferred from other reserves to income on sale (2,697,124) (10,872,942)
- Income tax on fair value movements taken to or from other reserves 2,895,700 12,192,629
Value of associates asset revaluation reserve recognised in other reserves 273,070 (297,569)
Value of associates foreign currency translation reserve recognised in other reserves 812 170,111
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (2,789,968) (30,720,666)
Total comprehensive income for the year 16,904,015 (98,087,353)
Attributable to:
Shareholders 16,798,389 (97,345,928)
Non-controlling interest 105,626 (741,425)
16,904,015 (98,087,353)

The above statement of comprehensive income is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial siatements set out on pages
15 10 53,
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CVCLIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2010
Notes
2010 2009
% $
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 25 40,796,600 66,113,849
Loans and other receivables 9 20,567,237 22,538,594
Current tax assets 6 518,246 302,434
Other assets 11 317,872 90,679
Total current assets 62,199,955 89,045,556
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Loans and other receivables 9 1,821,330 1,858,357
Financial assets — “available-for-sale™ 10 39,707,651 47,325,991
Investments accounted for using the equity method 12 37,666,238 29,710,700
Property, plant and equipment 15 25,714 8,547,570
Investment properties 16 83,415,653 20,780,653
Total non-current assets 162,636,586 108,223,271
TOTAL ASSETS 224,836,541 197,268,827
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 18 1,901,008 884,846
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 20 6,889,902 2,210,535
Provisions 19 198,435 188,986
Current tax liabilities 6 - 20,353
Total current liabilities 8,989,345 3,304,720
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provisions 19 44,432 35,926
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 20 43,587,074 21,233,402
Deferred tax liabilities 6 - 6,573,253
: Total non-current liabilities 43,631,506 27,842,581
| —_— R
. TOTAL LIABILITIES 52,620,851 31,147,301
! NET ASSETS 172,215,690 166,121,526
EQUITY
Contributed equity 21 115,687,816 122,627,967
Retained earnings 22 45,012,191 27,614,501
Other reserves 24 4,086,810 7,675,583
| R -
Total parent entity interest 164,786,817 157,918,051
; Non-contrelling interest 23 7,428,873 8,203,475
TOTAL EQUITY 172,215,690 166,121,526

The above statement of financial position is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements set out on pages 15 to 53.
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CVCLIMITED
(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

Notes :
2010 2009
$ $

CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash receipts in the course of opefations 4,163,583 5,371,490
Cash payments in the course of operations (4,840,495) (6,644,201}
Interest received 3,018,493 6,253,000
Dividends received 116,170 3,617,747
Interest paid (3,099,140) (683,816)
Income taxes paid {(9,060,189) (5,002,206)
Net cash (used in)/ provided by operating activities 25 9,701,578} 2,912,014
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for property, plant and equipment - (34,921)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3,446 -
Payment for investment properties (58,784,796) (321,709)
Payments for equity investments (30,008,010) (22,098,309)
Proceeds on disposal of equity investments 54,419,343 54,923,345
Proceeds from acquisition of controlled entities net of cash acquired - 1,146,826
Loans provided (16,526,723) (14,725,455)
Loans repaid 18,206,245 13,177,069
Net cash (used in)/ provided by investing activities (32,690,495) 32,066,846
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowings 28,050,000 -
Repayment of borrowings - (2,100,000%
Dividends paid to members of parent entity (2,716,612) (4,830,176}
Payment for share buy-back (8,246,130) (13,901,608)
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities 17,087,258 (20,831,784)
Net {decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents (25,304,815 14,147,076
Foreign exchange (loss)/gain on cash (12,434) 30,488
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 66,113,849 51,936,285
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL
YEAR 25

40,796,600 66,113,849

The above statement of cash flows is to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements set out on pages 15 to 53.
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CVCLIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

Note Contents
1. Statement of Accounting Policies
2. Controlled Entities
3. Parent Company Information
4. Income
5. Profit Before Income Tax Expense
6. Income Tax
7. Earnings Per Share
8. Dividends
9. Loans and Other Receivables
10. Financial Assets — “ Available-for-Sale”
11. Other Assets
12. Investrments Accounted for Using the Equity Method
13. Interests in Joint Ventures
14. Investments in Associated Entities
15. Property, Plant and Equipment
16. Investment Properties
17. Intangible Assets
18. Trade and Other Payables
| 19. Provisions
g 20. Interest Bearing Loans and Borrowings
: 21, Contributed Equity
22, Retained Earnings
23. Non-Controlling Interest
‘ 24. Other Reserves
} 25. Notes to Statement of Cash Flows
! 26, Auditors’ Remuneration
27. Commitments and Contingencies
]‘ 28. Segment Information
1 29. Related Party Information
30. Additional Financial Instruments Disclosure
31 Employee Entitlements
32, Events Subsequent to Year End
33, Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
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CVCLIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (CONTINUED)
NOTE1: STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant policies which have been adopted in the preparation of this Financial Report are:

1.1 Basis of Preparation

The financial report is a general-purpose financial report, which has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001 and Australian Accounting Standards. The financial report has also been prepared on a historical cost basis,
except for “available-for-sale” investments and investment properties which have been measured at fair value.

These accounting policies have been consistently applied by each entity in CVC and, except where a change in accounting policy is
indicated, are consistent with those of the previous year. Management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions in
relation to the carrying value of assets and Labilities, that have significant risk of material adjustments in the next year and these have
been disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements.

Critical accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with ATFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates, It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying CVC’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are
disclesed in note 33.

1.2 Statement of Compliance

The financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards, which include Australian equivalents to International Financial
Reporting Standards (AIFRS). The financial report also cormplies with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

CVC has adopted the following new and amended Australian Accounting Standards and AASB interpretations as of 1 January 2009:
AASB 2007-8: Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arvising from AASB 101 effective 1 January 2009;
AASB 2007-10: Further Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 101 effective 1 January 2009,

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 30 June 2010 reporting
periods:

AASB 9 Financial Instruments and AASB 2009-11 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 which have been
recently issued but is effective for reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2013, Application of the standard will not
affect any of the amounts recognised in the financial statements, but will impact the type of information disclosed in relation to the
CVC's financial report.

AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures which has been recently issued but is effective for reporting periods commencing on or after 1
January 2011, Application of the standard will not have a material impact on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

AASB 2009-5 Further Amendments to Australion Accounting Standards arising from the Annual Improvements Project [AASB 5, 8, 101, 107,
117, 118, 136 & 139] which has been recently issued but is effective for reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2010.
Application of the standard will noi affect any of the amounts recognised in the financial statements, but will impact the type of
information disclosed in relation to the CVC's financial report.

AASB 2010-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Annual Trnprovements Project [AASB 3, AASB 7, AASB 121,
AASB 128, AASB 131, AASB 132 & AASB 139] which has been recently issued but is effective for reporting periods commencing on or
after 1 July 2011. Application of the standard is not expected to have a significant impact on the financial statements.

AASB Interpretation 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments which has been recently issued but is effective for
reporting periods commencing on or after 1 July 2010, Application of the standard will not affect any of the amounts recognised in
the financial statements.

1.3 Principles of Consolidation

Controlled entities

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of CVC Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries during
the year ended 30 June 2010 (“CVC"). The financial statements of controlled entities are included in the results only from the date
contrel commences until the date control ceases and include those entities over which CVC has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies so as to obtain benefits from their activities.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all inter company balances and transactions, income and expenses and profits and
losses resulting from intra-group transactions have been eliminated in full and the reporting period and accounting policies of
subsidiaries are consistent with those of the parent entity.
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CVCLIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (CONTINUED)

NOTE1: STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.3°  Principles of Consolidation {Continued)

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase method of accounting which allocates the cost of the business
combination to the fair value of the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition.

Non-controlling interests not held by CVC are allocated their share of net profit after tax in the statement of comprehensive income
and are presented within equity in the consolidated statement of financial position, separately from parent shareholders” equity.
Increases in investments in existing controlled entities are recognised by CVC in equity with no impact on goodwill and the
statement of financial petformance. The difference between the consideration paid by CVC and the carrying amount of non-
controlling interest has been included in asset revaluation reserve.

Associates

Associates are those entities, other than partnerships, over which CVC exercises significant influence but not control. In the
consolidated financial statements investments in associates are accounted for using equity accounting principles. Investments in
associates are carried at the lower of the equity accounted amount and recoverable amount. CVC’s equity accounted share of the
associates' net profit or loss is recognised in the consclidated statement of comprehensive income from the dale significant influence
commences uniil the date significant influence ceases. CVC’s equity accounted share of movements in retained profits from changes
in accounting policies by associates is recognised directly in consolidated retained eamings (note 22). CVC’s equity accounted share
of other movements in reserves of associates is recognised directly in consolidated reserves.

Joint ventures

CVC's interests in joint venture partnerships are accounted for using equity accounting principles. Investments in joint venture
partnerships are cartied at the lower of the equity accounted amount and recoverable amount, CVC's equity accounted share of the
joint venture partnerships’ net profit or loss is recognised in the consolidated staterent of comprehensive income from the date joint
control commences to the date joint control ceases. CVC’s share of other movernents in reserves is recognised directly in consolidated
reserves.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Gains and logses and inter-entity balances resulting from transactions with or between controlled entities are eliminated in full on
consolidation. Gains resulting from transactions with associates are eliminated to the extent of CVC's interest.

Goodwill

Goodwill is considered to have an indefinite life and represents the excess of the purchase consideration over the fair value of
identifiable net assets acquired at the time of acquisition of a business or shares in a controlled entity. Following initial recognition
goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is not amortised.

14  Impairment

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are tested for possible reversal of the impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the impairment may have reversed.

1.5 Investments

Joint ventures

The Company’s interests in joint venture partnerships are accounted for using equity accounting principles. Investments in joint
venture partnerships are carried at the lower of the equity accounted amount and recoverable amount. The Company’s equity
accounted share of the joint venture partnerships’ net profit or loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income from the
date joint control commences to the date joint control ceases. The Company’s share of other movements in reserves is recognised
directly in reserves.

Set-off of financial assets and Habilities
For investments with direct associated debt, the financial assets and liabilities are reflected on a net basis where this reflects a right,
and an intention, to set-off the expected future cash flows from settling those assets and liabilities.
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CVC LIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (CONTINUED)

NOTE1l: STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.6 Income Tax and Other Taxes

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities on the current period’s taxable income at the tax rates enacted by the reporting date. Deferred income tax
assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred income tax is provided on all temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences and the carry-forward of unused tax credits can be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax asseis is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax Labilities are offset only if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Income taxes relating to items recognised directly in equity are recognised in equity and not in profit or loss.

Tax consolidation legislation

The controlled entities of the Company implemented the tax consolidation legislation as at 30 June 2003. The entities in the
consolidated group continue to account for their own current and deferred tax amounts. CVC has applied the “stand-alone taxpayer”
approach in determining the appropriate amount of current taxes and deferred taxes to be allocated to members of the tax
consolidated group. The Company recognises the current tax liabilities (or assets) from conirolled entities in the tax conselidated
group. To the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax
asset to be utilised the Company recognises the deferred tax assets from unused tax losses and unused tax credits assumed from
controlled entities in the tax consolidated group.

Goods and Services Tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of Goods and Services Tax (G5T), except:
e when the GST incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case
the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense item as applicable;
and

»  receivables and payables, which are stated with the amount of GST included.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the
statement of financial position,

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows arising from investing
and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority are classified as operating cash flows.

1.7 Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the statement of cash flows, cash includes cash on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
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CVCLIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (CONTINUED)

NOTE1: STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

18 Trade and Other Payables

Trade payables and other payables are carried at amortised costs and represent liabilities for goods and services provided to CVC
prior to the end of the financial year that are unpaid and arise when CVC becomes obliged to make future payments in respect of the
purchase of these goods and services.

19 Trade and Other Receivables

Trade receivables, which generally have 30-90 day terms, are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance for
any uncollectible amounts.

An allowance for doubtful debts is made when there is objective evidence that CVC will not be able to collect the debts. Bad debts are
written off when identified.

110  Property, Plant and Equipment

Acquisition
Ttems of property, plant and equipment are recorded at cost and depreciated as outlined below.

Investment properties

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including transaction costs. Investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflect market conditions at the reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties are
recognised in the statement of financial performance in the year in which they arise.

Leased plant and equipment
Lease of plant and equipment under which the Company or its controlled entities assume substantially all the risks and benefits of
ownership are classified as finance leases. Other leases are classified as operating leases.

Finance leases are capitalised. A lease asset and a liability equal to the present value of the minimum lease payments are recorded at
the inception of the lease. Lease liabilities are reduced by repayments of principal. The interest components of the lease payments
are charged to the statement of comprehensive income. Contingent rentals are expensed as incurred.

Payments made under operating leases are charged against profits in equal instalments over the accounting pericds covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased property.

Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated/amortised using the straight line and diminishing value methods over the estimated
useful lives, with the exception of finance lease assets. Finance lease assets are amortised over the term of the relevant lease, or where
it is likely CVC will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset. Depreciation and amortisation rates and methods are
reviewed annually for appropriateness. When changes are made, adjustments are reflected prospectively in current and future
periods only.

The current depreciation rates for each class of assets are as follows:
Plant and equipment 5% to 50%
Leased assets 15% to 25%

The carrying values of plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date, with recoverable amounts being
estirated when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
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CVC LIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)
NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (CONTINUED)

NOTE1: STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
111 Investments and Other Financial Agsets

Financial assets in the scope of AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are classified as either “financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss”, “loans and receivables”, “held-to-maturity investments”, or “available-for-sale” investments, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs, CVC determines the classification of its financial assets after initial recognition and,

when allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at each financial year-end.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that CVC commits to purchase
the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets under contracts that require delivery of the assets
within the period established generally by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Such assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised in the staterment
of comprehensive income when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

“Available-for-sale investments”

” Available-for-sale” investments are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as “available-for-sale” or are not
classified as any of the three preceding categories. After initial recognition “available-for-sale” investments are measured at fair value
with gains or losses being recognised as separate components of equity until the investment is derecognised or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income .

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market bid
prices at the close of business on the reporting date. For investments with no active market, fair value is determined using valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions; net asset backing; reference to the current market
value of another instrument that is substaniially the same and discounted cash flow analysis.

All other non-current investments are carried at the lower of cost and recoverable amount.

CVC assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
In the case of equity securities classified as “available-for-sale”, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of a security below
its cost is considered as an indicator that the securities are impaired. If any such evidence exisis for “available-for-sale” financial
assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the statement of comprehensive income — is removed from equity and recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income. Impairment losses recognised in the statement of comprehensive income on equity
instruments classified as “available-for-sale” are not reversed through the statement of comprehensive income.

112  Intangible Assets other than Goodwill

Intangible assets arve initially recorded at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets in relation to infra-group management agreements are eliminated on consolidation thereby increasing the
amount of goodwill arising.

113  Interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received less directly attributable transaction
costs.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowing costs consists of interest and other costs relating to the financing of the acquisition of investment properties, and are
expensed in the period they occur.

20



CVCLIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (CONTINUED)

NOTE1: STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
114 Revenue and Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to CVC and the revenue can be reliably
measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

Interest income

Revenue is recognised as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest rate, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Sale of non-current assets
The gain or loss on sale of non-current asset sales is included as income at the date control of the asset passes to the buyer, usually
when an unconditional contract of sale is signed.

The gain or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between the carrying amount of the asset at the time of disposal and the
net proceeds on disposal and in the case of “available-for-sale” assets will include any amount attributable to the asset which is
included in reserves.

Whére an equity investment in a controlled entity is reduced and the entity ceases to be controlled, revenue from either the sale of
goods or services from that investment ceases to be included in the statement of comprehensive income. If the equity investment
continues to be held as an “available-for-sale asset”, changes in ifs fair value will be recognised directly in other comprehensive
income. This may impact the ability to directly compare financial information.

Provision of services
Revenue from the provision of services represenis management fees charged to associated entities and is recognised when the terms

or the agreement are satisfied.

Where a financial asset has been issued in exchange for services, the market value of that asset is included as income at the date an
unconditional contract is signed.

Dividends

Revenue from dividends and other distributions from conirolled entities are recognised by the parent entity when they are declared
by the controlled entities.

Revenue from dividends from associates is recogrised by the Company when dividends are received.

Revenue from dividends from other investments is recognised when received.

Dividends received out of pre-acquisition reserves are recognised in revenue and the investment is also assessed for impairment.

Rental income
Rental revenue from operating leases is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.

Cuigoings recovered
Qutgoings recovered in relation to operating leases are recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.
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CVC LIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (CONTINUED)

NOTE1: STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

115 Employee Entitlements

Wages, salaries, annual leave and sick leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and anrnual leave expecied to be settled within 12 months of the
reporting date are recognised in other payables in respect of employees’ services up to the reporting date. They are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

Long service leave
The liability for long service leave is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured as the present value of expected
future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

Share based payment transactions
CVC provides benefits to employees (induding senior executives) of CVC in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees
render services in exchange for shares or rights over shares {equity-settled transactions).

The cost of these equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the
date at which they are granted, and amortised over the term of the plan.

116  Contributed Equity

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. Shares issued under the CVC Executive Long Term Incentive Plan are treated as
an option grant. The Black Scholes model is applied to calculate any equity based compensation amount arising from the assessed
value of the shares issued exceeding the amount which the employee is required to pay for those shares. Such amounts are amortised
over the relevant period during which the shares become available on an unrestricted basis. An increase in the value of contributed
equity is also only recognised at the end of the period when the shares become available on an unrestricted basis,

117  Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated as net profit attributable to members of the parent, adjusted to exclude any costs of servicing
equity (other than dividends) and preference share dividends, divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares, adjusted
for any bonus element.

118 Comparative Figures

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in presentation in the current year.
119  Segment Reporting

A business segment is a distinguishable component of the entity that is engaged in providing differentiated products or services.
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CVCLIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (CONTINUED)

NOTE 2: CONTROLLED ENTITIES

21 Composition of Consolidated Group

The consolidated financial statements include the following controlled entities. The financial years of all controlled entities are
the same as that of the parent entity. All companies are incorporated in Australia.
Interest Held by Consolidated Entity

2010 2009

% %
CVC Limited
Direct Controlled Entities:
Biomedical Systemns Pty Limited 100 100
CVC Fairfield Pty Limited 100 100
CVC Finance Company Pty Limited 100 100
CVC Funds Management Pty Limited 100 100
CVC Knoxfield Unit Trust No. 2 100 -
CVC Investment Managers Pty Limited 100 100
CVC Managers Pty Limited 100 100
CVC Mezzanine Finance Pty Limited 100 100
CVC Narabang Pty Limited 95 95
CVC (Newcastle) Pty Lirmited 100 100
CVC Property Managers Limited 100 100
CVC Property Fund 85 53
CVC Private Equity Limited 51 42
Renewable Energy Managers Pty Limited 100 100
Stinoc Pty Limited 99 99
The Eco Fund Managers Pty Limited 100 100
The Eco Fund Pty Limited 100 100
Contrelled Entities owned 100% by CVC Property Fund:
Belrose Unit Trust No. 1 100 100
Belrose Unit Trust No. 2 100 100
Belrose Unit Trust No. 3 100 100
CVC Knoxfield Unit Trust No. 1 100 -
Frenchs Forest No. 1 Trust 100 100
Frenchs Forest No. 2 Trust 100 -
Lauden CVC Property Trust 100 100
Controlled Entities owned 100% by CVC Narabang Pty Limited:
Narabang Constructions Pty Limited 100 100
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CVCLIMITED

{AND ITS CONTROQLLED ENTITIES)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3¢ JUNE 2010 (CONTINUED)

NOTE 3 PARENT COMPANY INFORMATION
The salient financial information in relation to the parent company, CVC Limited, are as follows:

2010 2009
$ $
Current assets 83,122,963 91,124,786
Total assets 181,008,731 186,648,390
Current liabilities 1,441,428 3,541,574
Total liabilites 42,408,816 44,874,463
Net Assets 138,599,915 141,773,927
Contributed equity 115,687,816 122,627,967
Retained earnings 14,242 529 14,082,901
Other reserves 8,669,570 5,063,059
Equity 138,599,915 141,773,927
Net profit/(loss) after tax 2,876,240 (45,889,050)
Other comprehensive income 3,606,508 (41,261,759)

Total comprehensive income 6,482,748 (87,150,809)

Guarantees and commitments

CVC Limited has provided an undertaking to National Australia Bark that it will meet the interest payments in relation to the
$6.35 million short term secured loan facility provided to CVC Knoxfield Unit Trust No. 2 referred to in note 20,

24



CVCLIMITED

{AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (CONTINUED)

2010 2009
3 $
NOTE 4: INCOME
Rental income
Related entities 284,760 284,760
Other entities 2,674,862 1,114,322
Outgoings recovered
Related entities 417,421 256,854
Revermue from services — related entities 435,235 1,876,822
Net gain on sales of equity investments 16,800,233 18,335,724
Interest:
Related entities 337,174 3,075,993
Other entiies 4,352,901 7,635,247
Dividends 874,090 3,140,016
Settlement proceeds 2,433,535 -
Iimpairment recoveries
Recovery of investments in associated entities 6,289,526 -
Recovery of loans 4,206,776 -
Other revenue 217,638 746,687

Total income 39,324,151 36,466,425

NOTE 5 PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Profit before income tax expense has been arrived at after charging the following items:

Borrowing costs:

Related entities 847,961 545,952

Other entities 3,247,938 1,260,864
Total borrowing costs 4,095,899 1,806,816
Other expenses:
Audit fees 181,680 166,140
Directors fees 34,000 40,957
Insurance 206,286 187,171
Legal costs 314,803 147,507
Travel and accommodation 74,639 71,933
All other expenses 815,100 549,170
Total other expenses

1,626,508
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CVC LIMITED

{AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)
NOTES TOC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (CONTINUED)

2010 2009
$ $
NOTE6:  INCOME TAX
6.1  Income Tax Expense/(Benefit):
Accounting profit/(loss) before income tax 24,712,468 (61,602,545)
Income tax expensef(benefit) at the statutory
income tax rate of 30% 7,413,740 (18,480,764)
Increase in income tax expense due fo:
Intangible assets impaired - 2,659,489
Trust loss not deductible 1,312,525 472,857
Tax losses not recognised - 213,332
Deferred tax not recognised - 21,952,278
Sundry iterns 33,354 32,316
Decrease in income tax expense due to:
Equity based remuneration - (22,168)
Dividends received (197,584) (1,049,778)
Tax loss utilised (2443) -
Deferred tax not recognised (12,576,772) -
Other income not assessable - (71,428)
(4,017,180) 5,706,134
Adjusiments in respect of current income tax of previous years 9,035,665 58,008
Income tax expense 5,018,485 5,764,142
: The major components of income tax expense are:
Current income tax charge - 351,801
Deferred income tax (4,017,180) 5,354,333
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years (a} 9,035,665 58,008
Income tax expense reported in the statement of financial performance 5,018,485 5,764,142

(a) The adjustment in respect of current income tax includes a payment of $9,071,549 in relation to an amendment by the Australian
Taxation Office to prior year tax returns in relation to a transaction dating back to 1987. A determination was made in relation to
the liability during the current financial year.

6.2 Current Tax Assets:
Income tax receivable:
Balance at the end of the year 518,246 302,434

6.3 Current Tax Liabilities:

Income tax payable:
Balance at the end of the year - 20,353

Income tax payable is payable by companies not included in the CVC tax consolidated group. Refer 6.6.
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CVCLIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (CONTINUED)

NOTE 6: INCOME TAX {CONTINUED)
6.4 Deferred Tax Assets:

Deferred income tax at 30 June related to the following deferred tax assets:

Included in Income
$

Year ended 30 fune 2010
Provisicns and accrued expenses 102,770
Impairment expenses 10,270,866
Share raising costs -
Equity accounted investments 5,051,447
Other 463,036
Tax losses 822,473
Deferred tax assets not recognised (16,710,592)

Year ended 30 June 2009
Provisions and accrued expenses 148,216
Impairment expenses 17,877,485
Share raising costs . -
Equity accounted investments 5,829,009
Other 41,681
Tax losses 613,174
Deferred tax assets not recognised {24,509,565)

6.5 Deferred Tax Liabilities

Deferred income tax at 30 June related to the following deferred tax liabilities:

Year ended 30 June 2010

“ Available-for-sale” investments -
Receivables 1,762,328
Equity accounted income 3,892,630
Property, plant and equipment ‘ 4,136
Other 1,184,804
Deferred tax labilities not recognised (6,843,898)
Year ended 30 June 2009

“ Available-for-sale” investments -
Receivables 1,253,802
Equity accounted income 1,555,615
Property, plant and equipment 4,136
Other 192,510
Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (2,806,148)

199,915
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Included in Equity
$

239,379

{239,379)

475,253

(475,253}

1,437,601

(1,437,601)

6,373,338

6,373,338

Total
5

102,770
10,270,866
239,379
5,051,447
463,036
822,473
(16,949,971)

148,216
17,877 A85
475,253
5,829,009
41,681
613,174
(24,984,818)

1,437,601
1,762,328
3,892,630
4,136
1,184,304
(8,281,499)

6,373,338
1,253,802
1,555,615

4136
192,510
(2,806,148)

6,573,253



CVC LIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 {(CONTINUED)
NOTE 6: INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)
6.6 Tax Consolidation

The controlled entities of the Company implemented the tax consolidation legislation as at 30 June 2003, Members of the group have
entered into a tax sharing agreement that provides for the allocation of income tax liabilities to subsidiaries in the event the tax
liability is not paid.

The entities in the consolidated group continue to account for their own current and deferred tax amounts. The members of the tax
consolidated group has applied the “stand-alone taxpayer” approach in determining the appropriate amount of current taxes and
deferred taxes to be allocated to members of the tax consolidated group.

In addition to its own current and deferred tax amounts, the Company recognises the current tax liabilities (or assets) from controlled
entities in the tax consolidated group. To the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised the Company recognises the deferred tax assets from unused tax losses and unused tax
credits assumed from controlled entities in the tax consolidated group.

Members of the tax consolidated group have entered into a tax funding agreement. Under the funding agreement the allocation of tax
within the group is calculated as if each entity was an individual entity for tax purposes. Unless agreed between the members the tax
funding agreement requires payment as a result of the fransfer of tax amounts.

NOTE7: EARNINGS PER SHARE

2010 2009
$ 5
Basic and Diluted earnings per share (dollars per share) 0.1467 (0.4452)
Reconciliation of earnings used in the calculation of earnings per share:
Profit after income tax 19,693,983  (67,366,687)
Less: non-controlling interest (420,319) (741,753)
Net profit/{loss) attributable to members of the parent entity 20,114,302  (66,624,934)
Number of Shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares — Basic and Diluted 137,108,749 149,659,372
Number of shares on issue at the end of the year 132,360,618 142,848,621
NOTE 8: DIVIDENDS
Dividends proposed or paid and not provided for in previous years by the Company are:
Declared during the financial period and included within the statement of financial position:
Cents  Total Date of ‘Tax rate for Percentage
Per Share $ Payment Franking Credif Franked
2010 Interim dividend on ordinary shares 2,00 2,716,612 19 March 2010 30% 100%

Declared after the end of the financial period and not included in the statement of financial position:
A final dividend in respect of the year ended 30 June 2010 of 3 cents per share was declared on 23 August 2010 payable on 8
September 2010 to those shareholders registered on 1 September 2010.

The Company
2010 2009
$ $
Dividend franking account
Franking credits available to shareholders for subsequent financial years 11,706,136 7,396,193

The franking account is stated on a tax paid basis. The balance comprises the franking account at year-end adjusted for:
(@) franking debiis that will arise from the refund of overpaid tax instalments paid

(b franking debits that will arise from the payment of dividends recognised as a liability at year-end

(c) franking credits that the entity may be prevented from distributing in subsequent years.

The ability to utilise the franking credits is dependent upon there being sufficient available profits to declare dividends.
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CVC LIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (CONTINUED)

NOTE % LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2010 2009
$ $
Current

Trade and other receivables 1,058,998 2,544,189
Loans to related entities 8,216,628 17,391,288
Impairment of loans to related entities (4,428,412) (1,914,554)
Loans to other corporations 15,720,023 16,059,239
Impairment of loans to other corporations - (11,541,568)
20,567,237 22,538,594

Non-current
Loans to other corporations 30,000 30,000
Impairment of loans to other corporations (30,000) (30,000)
Loans to related entities 1,821,330 3,513,447
Impairment of loans to related entities - (1,655,090)
1,821,330 1,858,357

When an entity does not pay a scheduled payment of principle and interest or management consider that there has been an
adverse change in the underlying value of assets securing the loan a review is conducted to determine if the loan is considered to
be impaired. Impairment of loans to related entities and other corporations has been determined after reviewing the underlying
assets supporting the loans and the history of making payments to reduce both the principle and interest outstanding.

Further details of loans are set out in notes 30 and 33.

NOTE10: FINANCIAL ASSETS — “AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE”

Non-current

Shares in listed corporations — at market value 35,029,036 43,073,818
Other investments - at cost 5,261,336 7,985,901
Impairment of other investments — at cost (1,500,000} (4,500,000)
Other investments — at market value 1,350,841 766,272
Impairment of other investments — at market value (433,562) -

39,707,651 47,325,991

Where there has been a reduction in the share price of an investment that appears to be prolonged management have made an
assessment as to whether an impairment is required. Impairment of invesiments has been determined with reference to either a
recent share price where an active market exists, discounted cashflow analysis, earnings multiples or underlying net assets.
Managernent assesses the results to determine the most appropriate valuation.

10.1 Shares in listed corporations — at market value
The carrying value of certain investments classified as “Shares in listed corporations — at market value” has been determined by using
the fair value approach. The closing “bid-price” was determined to be an appropriate indication for the fair value of the investment.

Significant share holdings are held in Resource Generation Limited, Mnet Group Limited, Vita Life Sciences Limited and Silver Bird
Group Bhd. The number of shares held is greater than what would reasonably be considered to be liquid. The closing “bid-price”
was determined to be an appropriate indication for the fair value of the investment. Refer note 33.5.

10.2 Other investments - at cost

The carrying value of certain investments classified as “Other investments — at cost” has been determined by using the fair value
approach less transaction costs based on the asset based methodology, using the most recent audited financial report. The
determination of the fair value has resulted in an impairment charge of $1,500,000 (2009: $4,500,000).
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CVCLIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (CONTINUED)
NOTE10;: FINANCIAL ASSETS - “AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE” (CONTINUED)

10.3 Other investments — at market value

The carrying value of certain investmenis classified as “Other investments — at market value” of $433,562 (2009: nil) has been
determined by using the fair value approach less transaction costs based on the asset based methodology, using the most recent
audited financial report. The determination of the fair value has resulted in the value of the investment being fully impaired. Since 30
June 2009 CVC has recovered $2,566,438. The directors consider that the remaining balance of $433,562 is still fully impaired.

2010 2009
$ $
NOTE11: OTHER ASSETS
Current
Prepayments and deposits 317,872 90,679
NOTE12 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD
Non-current
Equity accounted interests in joint ventures {note 13) - -
Equity accounted shares in listed associated compandes (note 14) 20,781,963 13,447,650
Equity accounted shares in other associated companies (note 14} 16,884,275 16,263,050

37,666,238 29,710,700

Where there has been a reduction in the share price of an investment that appears te be prolonged management have made an
assessment as to whether an impairment is required. The amount of the impairment has been determined after consideration of the
fair value of the investments, being a recent share price where an active market exists, or alternative valuation methodologies from a
review of the operations and assets of the company where an active market does not exist, Management assesses the resulls to
determine the most appropriate valuation,

12.1 Cellnet Group Limited

The carrying value of Cellnet Group Limited (“Cellnet”) has been determined by using the fair value approach. The closing “bid-
price” of Cellnet on 30 June 2010 was $0.30 per share which was determined to be an appropriate indication for the fair value of the
investment, despite the lack of an active market. Refer note 33.4 and 33.5.

12.2 Pro-Pac Packaging Limited

The carrying value of Pro-Pac Packaging Limited (“Pro-Pac”) has been determined by using the fair value approach. The closing
“bid-price” of Pro-Pac on 30 June 2010 was $0.325 per share which was determined to be an appropriate indication for the fair value
of the investment, despite it being in excess of the net tangible asset backing per share and the lack of an active market. Refer note 33.4
and 33.5.

12.3 GPG (No. 7) Pty Limited
The carrying value of GPG (No. 7) Pty Limited (“GPG} has been determined by using the fair value approach and has been calculated
as $7,116,615 based on the net asset backing methodology, using the most recent reports provided by the company, Refer note 33.6,

12.4 Concise Asset Management Limited

The carrying value of Concise Asset Management Limited has been determined by using the fair value approach and has been
calculated as nil based on the net asset backing methodology, using the most recent reports provided by the company. Refer note
33.6.

12,5 CVC Sustainable Investments
The carrying value of CVC Sustainable Investments (“CVCSI”) has been determined by using the fair value approach and has been

caleulated as $2,426,136 based on the net asset backing methodology, using the most recent reports provided by the group. Refer note
33.6.
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CVCLIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (CONTINUED)

2010 2009

NOTE13: INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
Joint Venture Parinerships
Interests in joint venture partnerships - -
Two joint venture parinerships, Chevron Developments and Skyline Investments Australia, were deregisiered during the year ended

30 June 2009. CVC did not hold any interests in joint venture partnerships during the year ended 30 June 2010.

Movements in interests in joint venture partnerships are as follows:

At beginning of the year - 2,051
Share of loss for the year - (38}
Distribution of profits - (2,013)
Balance at the end of the year - -

The share of the profit for the year from interests in joint venture partnerships is split as follows:

Income -
Expenses - (38)
Operating loss - (38}
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CVCLIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (CONTINUED)

NOTE15: PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant and equipment
At cost
Accumulated depreciation

Property
Property held for development

Total property, plant and equipment

Reconciliation

Plant and equipment

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year
Additions

Disposals

Depreciation

Property

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year

Property plant and equipment acquired as part of acquisition
of CVC Property Fund on 30 September 2008

Fair value adjustment

Reclassification to investment properties following change in
accounting standard

Carrying amount at the end of the year

NOTE16: INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties

Reconciliation

Investment properties at the beginning of year

Investment property acquired as part of acquisition of CVC
Property Fund on 30 September 2008

Depreciation

Reclassification from property, plant and equipment
following change in accounting standard

Additions - acquisition of properties

Additions — capital expenditure

Fair value adjustment

Total investment properties

2010
$

43,897
{18,183)

25,714

25,714

47,570
11,575
(15,021)
(18,410)

25,714

8,500,000

(8,500,000)

83,415,653

20,780,653

8,500,000
58,266,162
515,408
(4,646,570)

83,415,653

35

2009
$

283,704

(236,134)

47,570

8,500,000

8,547,570

34,484
34,921

(21,835)

47,570

9,500,000

(1,000,000

8,500,000

20,780,653

2,783,873

18,000,000
(3,220)

20,780,653



CVCLIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (CONTINUED)

NOTE 16:

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

The Directots of the entities that own the properties have reviewed their carrying values and present the following:

Total Cost Date of Movement  Consolidated  Consolidated
Acquisition  including Latest since Book Value  Book Value 30
Ownership  Acquisition Price additions External Independent  Acquisition 30 June 2010 June 2009
Name Notes % Date (Fmillion) (' million) Valuation Valuer {$'million) (%' million) ($'million)
CVC Faitfield Pty Limited
96 Fairfield Street
Fairfield NSW a 100% QOct 2006 $2.7 $2.8 nfa nfa - $2.8 $2.8
CVC Property Fund
1 Narabang Way,
Belrose NSW b 100% Apr 2007 $13.7 $14.9 nfa nfa ($8.1) $6.8 $8.5
8 Rodborough Rd (B Richard
__Frenchs Forest NSW c 100% QOct 2007 $21.0 $22.4 12 Mar 2010 Ellis ($4.6) $17.8 518
357-373 Warringah Rd Colliers
_ Frenchs Forest NSW c 100% Mar 2010 $14.2 $15.2 2 Feb 2010 International {$0.1} $15.1 n/a
Unit 2 1464 Ferntree
Cully Rd Knoxfield Jones Lang
VIC C 100% Mar 2010 $28.8 $30.5 5 Feb 2010 LaSalle ($1.5) $29.0 n/a
CVC Knoxfield Unit Trust No. 2
Unit 11464 Ferntree
Gully Rd Knoxfield Jones Lang
VIC d 100% Mar 2010 $11.0 $12.6 5 Feb 2010 LaSalle ($0.7) $11.9 n/a

(a) The fair value of the property at 96 Fairfield Street Fairfield NSW has been determined by Directors based on the market

rental yield expected to be achieved from the property. The Directors consider that the current carrying value of the

property is appropriate.

Capitalisation rate
Lease expiry
Occupancy

2010
10.2%
0.17 years
100%

2009
10.2%
1.17 vears
100%

(b) The fair value of the 1 Narabang Way, Belrose NSW property has been determined by Directors based on the unimproved
land value assessed by the Office of State Revenue effective 1 January 2010. The basis of the valuation has been determined
by using a direct comparison approach.

(¢} The fair value has been determined by independent valuation by using a combination of discounted cash flow,
capitalisations of income and direct comparison approaches. The below table illustrates the key valuation assumptions
used in the determination of the investment properties fair value.

Capitalisation rate
Lease expiry
Occupancy

Weighted average

2010

9.4%

7.50 years
100%

2009
8.7%
4.36 years
100%

(d) The fair value of the Unit 1 1464 Ferntree Gully Rd Knoxfield VIC has been determined by Directors based on an
agreement to sell the property once certain conditions have been met. The Directors consider that the current carrying value
of the property is appropriate,
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CVC LIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (CONTINUED)

2010 2009
$ $
NOTE17: INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill - -
Management agreements - 1,170,000
Accumulated amortisation - (497,250}
Tmpairment . (672,750)
Total management agreements - -
Total intangible assets ) - -
Reconciliations
Goodwill
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year - 7,625,384
Arising from the acquisition of controlled entities - 1,076,543
Impairment - (8,701,927)
Carrying amount at the end of the year - -
Management agreements
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year - 731,250
Amortisation - (58,500

Impairment - (672,750}

Carrying amount at the end of the year - -

17.1 Impairment test for goodwill and management agreements

The carrying value of Goodwill and Management Agreements are determined by using the “value-in-use” of management fees
received by CVC Managers Pty Limited. The value of the Goodwill and Management Agreements were impaired to nil during the
year ended 30 June 2009.

NOTE18: TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Current

Trade and other payables 732,832 516,783
Sundry creditors and accruals 1,049,548 332,811
Goods and services tax 118,628 35,252

Total current accounts payable 1,901,008 884,846

NOTE19: PROVISIONS

Current

Employee entitlements 198,435 188,986
Non-Current

Employee entitlernents 44,432 35,926
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CVC LIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (CONTINUED)

2010 2009
$ $
NOTE 20: INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS
Current

Unsecured loans 539,902 2,210,535
Secured bank loan 6,350,000 -
6,889,902 2,210,535

Non-Current
Secured bank loans 35,900,000 14,200,000
Unsecured loan from associated entity 7,687,074 7,033,402

43,587,074 21,233402

20.1 Secured Bank Loan - Current

The current secured bank loan is from National Australia Bank and attracts a rate of interest of BBSY plus 2.75% per annum and
secured by first ranking mortgages over 1464 Ferntree Gully Road Knoxfield Victoria. The maturity of the facility is 31 March
2011,

20.2 Secured Bank Loan - Non -Current

The non-current secured bank loans are from National Australia Bank and attract a rate of interest of BBSY plus 1.85% per annum
and secured by first ranking mortgages over the properties at 8 Rodborough Road Frenchs Forest New South Wales, 1 Narabang
Way, Belrose New South Wales, 357-373 Warringah Road Frenchs Forest New South Wales and 1464 Ferntree Gully Road
Knoxfield Victoria. The terms of the loan include the maintenance of loan valuation ratio of not more than 55% and an interest
cover ratio of 1.3 times with the maturify of the facilities on 31 October 2012,

20.3 Unsecured loan from associated entity

This loan is an unsecured loan from Winten (No. 20) Pty Limited at an interest rate of 10% per annum repayable as by 5 April
2012,

20.4 Unsecured loans

The unsecured loans are structured loan facilities linked to the loans provided by CVC to CVC Geelong Unit Trust, CVC
Sheppatton Pty Limited and CVC Wagga Wagga Unit Trust. The loans are only repayable when CVC Geelong Unit Trust, CVC
Shepparton Pty Limited and CVC Wagga Wagga Unit Trust repay their loans to CVC and attract a rate of interest of 20% per
annum. During the year ended 30 June 2010 the loan facilities in relation to CVC Geelong Unit Trust and CVC Shepparton Pty
Limited were settled.
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CVCLIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (CONTINUED)

NOTE 21: CONTRIBUTED EQUITY

The Company
2010 2009
Number $ Number 5
Issued and paid-up ordinary share capital
Balance at the beginning of the year 142,848,621 122,627,967 162,352,134 136,823,139
Shares bought back on market (10,488,003} (6,940,151)  (19,503,513) (14,195,172}
Balance at the end of the year 132,360,618 115,687,816 142,848,621 122,627,967

On 23 November 2009 CVC received approval from shareholders to undertake an on-market share buy-back scheme for a duration of
12 months and limited to 30,000,000 ordinary shares. At the date of this report 4,054,423 shares had been bought back under this
scheme,

2010 2009
$ $
NOTE 22: RETAINED EARNINGS
Retained earnings at the beginning of the year 27,614,501 99,069,611
Net profit/(loss) attributable to members of the parent company 20,114,302 (66,624,934)
Dividends (2,716,612) (4,830,176}
Retained earnings at the end of the year 45,012,191 27,614,501
NOTE 23: NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
Reconciliation of non-controlling interest in controlled entities:
Balance at the beginning of the year 8,203,475 65,997
Share of net loss (420,319) (741,753)
Acquisition of interests in controlled entities 606,670 8,878,903
Disposal of shares by non-controlling interest in controlled entities (1,486,898) -
Revaluation of investments 525,945 328
Balance at the end of the year 7,428,873 8,203,475
The non-controlling interest at the end of the year comprises interests in:
Share capital 13,534,211 21,310,675
Asset revaluation reserve (512,492) (317,918)
Accumulated losses (5,592,846) (12,789,282)

7,428,873 8,203,475

39



CVCLIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (CONTINUED)

NOTE24&: OTHER RESERVES

o Sore foin
Revaluation Benefit Translation Total
Reserve
Reserve Reserve
$ b $ 5
Year ending 30 June 2010
Reserves at the beginning of the year 7,753,413 (136,770) 58,940 7,675,583
Equity accounted share of reserves 273,070 302,000 812 575,882
Net unrealised loss on “available-for-sale” investments (1,449,132) - 186,706 (1,262,426)
Net unrealised loss on “available-for-sale” investments —
" non-controlling interest (751,348) - - (751,348)
Acquisition of noni-controlling interest (574,860) - - (574,860)
Realised loss on “available-for-sale” investments
reclassified to other comprehensive income {4,692,559) - {4,565) {4,697,124)
Tax effect of net loss on “available-for-sale” investments 2,849,456 - 46,244 2,895,700
Tax effect of net loss on “available-for-sale” investments —
non-controlling interest 225,403 - - 225,403
Reserves at the end of the year 3,633,443 165,230 288,137 4,086,810
Year ending 30 June 2009
Reserves at the beginning of the year 39,529,888 (48,997) (996,541) 38,484,350
Share based payments - (73,891) - (73,891)
Equity accounted share of reserves (297,569} (13,882 170,111 (141,340)
Net unrealised loss on “available-for-sale” investments (32,675,374) - 762,479 (31,512,895)
Net untealised loss on “available-for-sale” investments —
non-controlling interest (328) - - (328)
Realised loss on “available-for-sale” investments
reclassified to the income statement (11,375,278) - 502,336 (10,872,942)
Tax effect of net loss on “available-for-sale” investments 12,572,074 - (379,445) 12,192,629
Reserves at the end of the year 7,753,413 (136,770) 58,940 7,675,583

24.1 Asset Revaluation Reserve

The asset revaluation reserve includes the movement in the fair value of “available-for-sale” financial assets to the extent that they
offset one another and CVC’s share of the unrealised appreciation in value of controlled entities following the acquisition of a non-

controlling interest,

24.2 Employee Equity Benefit Reserve

The employee equity benefits reserve is used to record the value of share based payments for CVC and associated entities provided

to employees, including key management personnel, as part of their remuneration.
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CVCLIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (CONTINUED)

NOTE25: NOTES TO STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
25.1 Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes cash on hand and at bank and short-term deposits at call. Cash as at

the end of the financial year as shown in the statement of cash flows is reconciled to the related items in the statement of financial
position as follows:

2010 2009
$ $
Cash and cash equivalents 40,796,600 66,113,849
25.2  Reconciliation of Profit after Income Tax to Cash from Operating Activities
Net profit/(loss) 19,693,983 (67,366,687)
Add/(less) non-cash items:
Share of equity accounted (profits)/losses (3,271,146) 7,142,200
Depreciation and amortisation of property plant and equipment 18,410 25,055
Amortisation of intangibles - 58,500
Bad debts written off 34,042 -
Impairment expenses on assets 8,876,446 84,361,979
Impairment recoveries (12,929,837) -
Profit on disposal of investments (16,800,233) (18,335,724)
Net foreign curreny loss 12,434 (30,488}
Interest income not received (1,671,582) (3,868,162)
Interest expense not paid 996,760 545,952
Dividend income not received (757,921) 155,686
Option income not received {(3,559) (9,092)
Movement in current tax liabilities (236,166) (4,525,892)
Movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities (3,805,537) 5,287,838
Equity remuneration - (73,891)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Trade and other receivables 137,225 1,453,622
Trade and other payables 214,341 (2,010,541}
Provisions 17,955 1,765
Other assets (227,193) 99,894

Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities {9,701,578) 2,912,014
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CVC LIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (CONTINUED)

NOTE25: NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}

2010 2009
$ $
25.3  Financing Facilities
At 30 June 2010, CVC had access to the following specific lines of credit,
Total facilities available:
Secured bank loan 47,250,000 14,200,000
Total facilities used:
Secured bank loan 42,250,000 14,200,000
NOTE 26: AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
The auditor of the Compary is HLB Mann Judd.
Amounts received or due and receivable to Auditors of the Company:
Audit or review of the financial report 181,680 166,410

The Auditors received no other benefits.
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CVC LIMITED

{AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (CONTINUED)

NOTE27: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

271 Operating Lease Commitments

2010 2009
$ $
Non-cancellable operating lease expense
Commitments
Puture operating lease commitments not provided for in the
financial statements and payable:
- within one year 426,943 406,458
- later than one year but not later than five years 593,950 1,010,787
1,020,893 1,417,245

27.2 Contingencies

CVC Private Equity Limited is continuing to pursue legal action in relation to the recovery of loans provided to a subsidiary of
Raptis Group Limited. It is not possible to quantify the expected costs to be incurred in relation to these claims.

NOTE28: SEGMENT INFORMATION
28.1 Primary Segments - Business Segments
Information for each business segment is shown in the following tables, in round thousands, as permitted under class order 98/100.

Composition of each business segment is as follows:

- Private Equity and Venture Capital involves equity and debt investments in non-listed entities not classified as property or
funds management. It includes shares, debt, convertible notes and other investments.

- Listed Investiments comprises investments listed on recognised stock exchanges.

- Property comprises property finance and equity accounted property interests.

- Funds Management comprises the business and assets of the investment funds management operations.

28.2 Secondary Segments - Geographical Segments

CVC operates predominantly in Australia.
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CVCLIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)
NOTES TO THE FENANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (CONTINUED)
NOTE29: RELATED PARTY INFORMATION
291  Key Management Personnel
The only key management personnel of the Company are the Directors.

The names of each person holding the position of Director of CVC during the financial year are:

Vanda Russell Gould

John Scott Leaver

John Douglas Read

Alexander Damien Harry Beard

Details of Directors’ remuneration, superannuation and retirement payments are set out in the Remuneration Report section of the
Directors’ Report.

Apart from the details disclosed in this financial report, no Director has entered into a contract with the Company or CVC since the
end of the previous financial year and there were no contracts involving Directors' interests existing at year-end.

29.2  Loans to Key Management Personnel
The details of the loans to Directors and key management personnel have been included in the Remuneration Report.

29.3  Loans with Related Parties

The following represent loans to and from related parties with CVC and its confrolled entities during the financial year.

2010 2009 Interest
Rate
$ $ %
Loans Receivable
CVC Sustainable Investments No.2 Limited 1,169,273 1,002,871 10.0%
CVC Shepparton Pty Limited - 688,500 20.0%
CVC Geelong Unit Trust - 11,297,766 20.0%
Impairment of loan — CVC Geelong Unit Trust - (1,914,554}
CVC Wagga Wagga Unit Trust 5,449,022 5,405,022 20.0%
Impairment of loan —- CVC Wagga Wagga Unit Trust (1,949,022) -
CVC REEF Limited (a) 1,889,224 1,889,224 6.5%
Impairment of loan - CVC REEF Limited (1,601,008} (1,033,738)
Concise Asset Management Limited 878,382 621,352 8.5%
Impairment of loan — Concise Asset Management Limited (878,382) (621,352)
Battery Energy Power Solutions Pty Limited 652,057 675,705 10%
Loans Payable
Winten (No. 20) Piy Limited 8,220,559 7,506,299 10%

(a) The loan to CVC REFF Limited is unsecured.
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CVC LIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)
NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (CONTINUED)
NOTE29: RELATED PARTY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

29.4  Other Transactions
The following represent amounts paid and received from related parties to CVC and its controlled entities during the financial year.

2010 2009
Paid Received Paid Received
$ $ $ $
Management fees:
CVC Private Equity Limited (a) - - - 517,767
CVC Sustainable Investments Limited - 118,558 - 182,775
CVC Sustainable Investments No. 2 Limited - 145,522 - 182,963
CVC Reef Investment Managers Pty Limited - - - 80,000
CVC Property Fund (a) - - - 45,000
Frenchs Forest No.1 Trust (a) - - - 10,107
Amadeus Energy Limited - 35,822 - -
Cellnet Group Limited - 54,500 - 54,500
Cydlopharm Limited - 8,231 - 40,724
Dolomatrix International Limited - 55,000 - -
Mnet Group Limited - 8,333 - 25,000
The Environmental Group Limited - 17,500 - 71,479
GPG No.7 Pty Lid - - - 561,749
CVC Geelong Unit trust : - - - 50,000
Pro-Pac Packaging Limited - - - 40,500
Battery Energy Solutions Pty Limited 25,000 - - -
Wenola Services Pty Limited (c) 200,000 - 200,000 -
Southseas Nominees Pty Limited (b) 100,000 - 100,000 -
Melbourne Corporation of Australia Pty Limited (b) 100,000 - 100,000 -
Other services
Melbourne Corporation of Australia Pty Limited (b)
- Secretarial 44,100 - 44,100 -

(a) Represents amounts received prior to becoming a controlled entity of CVC.
{b) Private companies associated with Mr Gould.
(c) Private company associated with Mr Leaver.
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CVC LIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (CONTINUED)
NOTE3(}; ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURE (CONTINUED)

30.1 Interest Rate Risk (Continued)

CVC helds a significant amount of cash balances which is exposed to movements in interest rates. To reduce the risk CVC typically
deposits uncommitted cash with financial institutions at fixed rates with maturity of between 30 -- 90 days, Interest bearing loans and
receivables are made at fixed rates. CVC is not charged inferest on outstanding trade and other payable balances. CVC enters into
loans and borrowings with fixed rates of interest when it is considered commercial and necessary to manage cash flows.

Sensitivity
At reporting date, if interest rates had been 50 basis points higher (2009: 50 basis points higher} and the other variables were held
constant, then the impact of the Group would be:

Increase of 50 bp
$
2010
Net profit 56,831
Equity increase 56,831
2009
Net profit 172,104
Equity increase 172,104

30.2 Price Risk

CVC has investments in listed securities which could be adversely affected if general equity market values were to declirie. CVC also
has investments in unlisted securities however these are less susceptible to movements in value as a result of market sentiment as
they are valued based on operational fundamentals. CVC does not hedge its exposure to the risk of a general decline in equity market
values, believing that such strategies are not cost-effective,

Sensitivity
At reporting date, if equity prices had been 10% higher/(lower) while all other variables were held constant the impact would be:

Increase of 10% Decrease of 10%
$ 8
2010
Net profit/(loss) 2,320,810 (2,320,810)
Equity increase/(decrease) 3,594,631 (3,594,631)
2009
Net profit/(loss) 941,336 (941,336}
Equity increase/(decrease) 3,139,378 (3,139,378)

30.3 Credit Risk Exposure

Credit risk refers to the loss that CVC would incur if a debtor or a counterparty fails to perform under its obligations. The carrying
amounts of financial assets recognised in the statement of financial position best represent CVC’s maximum exposure to credit risk at
reporting date. CVC seeks to limit its exposure to credit risk by performing appropriate background investigations on counterparties
before entering into arrangements with them and to seek collateral with a value in excess of the counterparty’s obligations to CVC,
providing a “margin of safety” against loss.

CV(C’s significant concentration of credit risk relates to deposits held with financial institutions, which is mitigated by the
requirement that deposits are only held with instifutions with an “investment grade” credit rating, and loans made to various
entities, which are mitigated by collateral held with a value in excess of the counterparty’s obligations to CVC, providing a “margin
of safety” against loss.
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CVC LIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (CONTINUED)
NOTE30: ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURE (CONTINUED)

30.3 Credit Risk Exposure (Continued)

CVC minimises concentrations of credit risk in relation to trade receivables by undertaking transactions with a number of
counterparties, and is managed through normal payment terms of 30 days. At reporting date there are no overdue trade debtors.

30.4 Liquidity Risk
CVC manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash balances and holding liquid investments that could be realised to meet
commitments. CVC continuously monitors forecast and actual cash flows and matches the maturity profiles of financial assets and

liabilities.

The following table details CVC’s contractual liabilities.

Less than 6 6 months to 1to5 Years Greater than Total
months 1 Year 5 Years
% $ $ $ $
2010
Trade and other payables 1,502,508 398,500 - - 1,901,008
Interest bearing liabilities - 6,889,902 43,587,074 - 50,476,976
2009
Trade and other payables 884,846 - - - 884,846
Interest bearing liabilities 1,630,596 579,939 14,200,000 7,033,402 23,443,937

30,5 Currency Risk

Currency risk is measured using sensitivity analysis. A portion of CVC investments are in companies listed on foreign exchanges and
so is exposed to a decline in the values of those currencies relative to the Australia dollar. Considering the quantum of the
investments in absolute terms as well as relative terms compared to CVC's total investment portfolio it is not cost-effective to hedge
against foreign exchange fluctuations.

Foreign currency sensitivity

CVC is exposed to the Malaysian ringgit (MYR). The following table details CVC’s sensitivity to a 10% change in the Australian
dollar against the respective currencies with all other variables held constant as at reporting date for unhedged foreign exchange
exposure. A positive number indicates an increase in net profit/equity.

A sensitivity of 10% has been selected as this is considered reasonable given the current level of exchange rates and the volatility
observed on a historic basis and market expectations for fuhure movement.

Increase in AUD of 10%  Decrease in AUD of 10%
$ $

MYR
2010
Net profit/{loss) - -

Equity increase/(decrease) (589,915) 740,932
2009

Net profit/(loss) -
Equity increasef(decrease} (580,748) 736,449
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CVC LIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (CONTINUED)

NOTE 30:

30.6 Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities

ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURE (CONTINUED)

CVC uses various methods in estimating the fair value of a financial instrument. The methods comprise:

Level 1 — the fair value is calculated using quoted prices in active markets.
Level 2 - the fair value is estimated using inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset, either

directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices).

Level 3 — the fair value is estimated using inputs for the asset that are not based on observable market data.

The fair value of the financial instruments as well as the mefhods used to estimate the fair value are summarised in the table below.

Year ending 30 June 2010

Financial assets

“ Available-for-sale” investments

Shares in listed corporations — at market value
Other investments — at cost

QOther investments — at market value

“Loans and receivables”
Loans to related entities
Loans to other corporations

Year ending 30 June 2009

Financial assets

“ Available-for-sale” investments

Shares in listed corporations — at market value
Other investments — at cost

Other investments — at market value

“Loans and receivables”
Loans to related entities
Loans to other corporations

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value movements:

Balance at the beginning of the year

Impairment

Impairment recovery

Interest income

Other comprehensive income
Purchase

Sales

Issues

Settlement

Balance at the end of the year

Quoted market

price
{Level 1)

8

14,197,617

14,197,617

29,711,450

29,711,450
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Valuation
technique -
market observable
inputs (Level 2}

$

20,831,419

917,279

21,748,698

13,362,368

766,272

14,128,640

Valuation Total
technique —non
market observable
inputs (Level 3)

$ $

- 35,029,036

3,761,336 3,761,336

- 917,279

5,609,546 5,609,516

15,720,023 15,720,023

25,090,905 61,037,220

- 43,073,818

3,485,901 3,485,901

- 766,272

17,335,091 17,335,091

4,517,671 4,517,671

25,338,663 69,178,753

2010 2009

§ $

25,338,663 47,912,026

(2,946,734) (22,119,571)

6,566,438 242,227

1,863,102 3,700,014

- (89,400)

750,000 856,051

(307,414) (12,111}

16,583,754 10,496,491

(22,756,904) (15,647 564)

25,090,905 25,338,663



CVCLIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (CONTINUED)

NOTE31: EMPLOYEE ENTITLEMENTS

Aggregate liability for employee entitlements including on-costs:

2010 2009

$ $

Current 198,435 188,986
Non-current 44,432 35,926
Number of employees at year-end 9 8

NOTE32: EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO YEAR END

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 30 June 2010 of 3 cents per share was declared on 23 August 2010 payable on 8
September 2010 to those shareholders registered on 1 September 2010.

On 6 August 2010 a controlled entity of the Company, ASX listed CVC Property Fund completed a rights issue of 1.5 units for each
unit held at 1.2 cents. The total acceptances received, excluding CVC, amounted to $330,241.

Oiher than as set out above, there are no other matters or circumstances that have arisen since the end of the financial year which
significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of CVC, the resulis of those operations or the state of affairs of CVCin
future financial years,

NOTE33: CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

CVC makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future, The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results, The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

33.1 Loans to other corporations
An impairment has been raised against certain loans to other corporations of $30,000 (2009: $11,571,568) that have a carrying value of
$15,750,023 (2009: $16,089,239). The recoverable amount has been assessed in note 9.

33.2 Loans to related entities

CVC has provided a loan of $1,889,223 (2009: $1,889,223) to CVC REEF Limited, a public investment company which Mr Gould is a
director. CVC REFEF Limited is a venture capital fund established to increase investment in renewable energy and enabling
technelogies through the provision of equity finance under the Australian Government's REEF program.

CVC has provided a subordinated loan of $878,382 (2009: $621,352) to Concise Asset Management Limited, a boutique fund manager
focused on investments in ASX listed entities of which CVC holds a 49% interest and Mr Beard is a director.

CVC has provided loans with a total carrying value of $5,449,022 (2009: $5,405,022) to CVC CVC Wagga Wagga Unit Trust which
focused on the development of bulky goods properties which CVC holds a 50% interest and Mr Beard is a director.

An impairment has been raised against loans to related entities of $4,428,412 (2009: $3,569,644) that have a carrying value of
$8,216,628 (2009: $13,808,342). The recoverable amounts of the loans have been assessed in note 9.

33.3 Available-for-sale investment
The fair value of the investments has been assessed in note 10.

33.4 Investments accounted for using the equity method - listed investments

The investment in Cellnet Group Limited has a carrying value of $8,541,613 (2009: $7,196,621) following an impairment recovery of
$551,433 (2009: impairment charge $1,426,584) and Pro-pac Packaging Limited has a carrying value of $12,240,350 (2009: $4,574,585)
following an impairment recovery of $5,645,827 (2009: impairment charge $9,604,768).
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CVC LIMITED

{AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 (CONTINUED)
NOTE33: CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

33.5 Absence of active market

In calculating the fair value of Resource Generation Limited (note 10), Mnet Group Limited (note 10}, Vita Life Sciences Limited
(note 10), Silver Bird Group Bhd (note 10), Celinet Limited (note 12) and Pro-Pac Packaging Limited (note 12) CVC has
determined that an active market does not exist for significant holdings because each company does not trade on a daily basis;
each trade that is executed, excluding those by CVC, is small in size; and the market capitalisation is small such that larger
institutions do not hold significant shareholdings. However the active market in small amounts of trading does provide a guide
for valuation in that it indicates whether or not the market values the intangible assets of an entity. This factor has been used in
determining the valuation of each company.

33.6 Investments accounted for using the equity method — unfisted investments

The investment in GPG (No. 7) Pty Limited {(“GPG”) has a carrying value of $7,116,615 (2009: $8,470,000) following an impairment
charge during the year of $1,134,485 (2009: $4,534,201). The total impairment charge made against GPG totals $5,668,686 (2009:
$4,534,201). CVC has discounted net tangible asset backing to reflect an estimate of the recoverable value of assets of the company to
reflect the current trading environment. If the discount is +/- 10% the impact on the carrying value of GPG is +/- $711,662.

CVC Sustainable Investments has a carrying value of $2,426,136 (2009: 2,354,311) following an impairment charge during the year of
$94,871 (2009: nil).

Concise Asset Management Limited has a carrying value of nil.

The recoverable amounts have been assessed in note 12,

33.7 Properties
Fair value adjustments have been made against properties held by CVC. The fair value adjustments during the year are as follows:

2010 2009

$ $

1 Narabang Way, Belrose New South Wales 2,215,408 1,000,000
8 Rodborough Rd Frenchs Forest New South Wales 200,000 -
357-373 Warringah Rd Frenchs Forest New South Wales 121,831 -
Unit 1 1464 Ferntree Gully Rd Knoxfield Vicioria 657,558 -
Unit 2 1464 Ferntree Gully Rd Knoxfield Victoria 1,451,773 -

4,646,570 1,000,000

The recoverable amounts have been assessed at note 16.

53



CVC LIMITED

(AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES)
DIRECTORS' DECLARATION

For the Year Ended 30 June 2010

In the opinion of the Directors of CVC Limited:
{2) The financial statements and notes of the consolidated entity are in accordance with Corporations Act 2001, including:

i) giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2010 and of its performance for
the year ended on that date; and

(i) complying with Accounting Standards and Corporations Regulations 2001.
(b) the financial statements and notes also comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note 1.

(c) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and
payable; and

(d) the audited remuneration disclosures set out on pages 6 to 7 of the Directors' Report comply with Accounting Standards
AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures and the Corporations Regulations 2001

This declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the Directors in accordance with
8. 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 for the financial period ending 30 June 2010,

Dated at Sydney 31 August 2010,

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors,

oujd H Bear
Dixector Director
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Mann Judd

Accountants | Business and Financial Advisers

CVC LIMITED
AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES

ACN 002 700 361
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the members of CVC Limited:
Report on the Financial Report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of CVC Limited (“the Company”) which comprises
the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2010, and the statement of financial performance,
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for
the year ended on that date, a summary of significant accounting policies, other explanatory notes and
the directors’ declaration of the consolidated entity comprising the Company and the entities it
controlled at the year's end or from time to time during the financial year as set out on pages 10 to 54.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations) and the Corporations Act 2001. This responsibility includes establishing and
maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that
is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

In Note 1.2, the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101: Presentation
of Financial Statements, that the consolidated financial statements comply with International Financial
Reporting Standards.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we
comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonabie assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error.
in making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

Our audit did not invelve an analysis of the prudence of business decisions made by directors or
management.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.
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Mann Judd
CVC LIMITED

AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
ACN 002 700 361
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act
2001. We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, provided
to the directors of CVC Limited on 31 August 2010, would be in the same terms if provided to the
directors as at the time of this auditor's report.

Auditor’s Opinion

In our opinion:

(@) the financial report of CVC Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2010
and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

(i} complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations) and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

{b) the consolidated financial statements also comply with International Financial Reporting
Standards as disclosed in Note 1.2.

Report on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included in pages 6 to 7 of the directors’ report for the year
ended 30 June 2010.The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of the Remuneration Report in accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act
2001. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Remuneration Report, based on our audit
conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

Auditor’s Opinion

In our opinion the Remuneration Report of CVC Limited for the year ended 30 June 2010 complies with

section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.
g Ao / L

HLB MANN JUDD
Chartered Accountants

f i

Sydney P B Meade
31 August 2010 Partner

56



